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April 6, 2016 
 
Via E-mail: jferree@ci.craig.co.us   
 
 
Mr. Jim Ferree 
City Manager 
Craig, CO 
 
 
RE: Lariat Lift Station Project – Contractor Recommendation 
 
Dear Jim: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to provide a recommendation on contractor selection for the Lariat Lift 

Station Project. The project was competitively bid for two weeks with the bids due on Thursday 

March 31, 2016. Three bids were received from the seven eligible general contractors that 

attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting; the bid tabulation is attached. 

  

The lowest bid was by Mueller Construction Services, Inc. from Glenwood Springs for 

$296,669.00. The project was discussed with Mueller and it was determined that increasing the 

size of the main lift station vault would make servicing of the lift station much easier for Craig Staff. 

The cost of the increase in vault size is $1,725.00 which would make the total project cost 

$298,394.00. Mueller Construction submitted a construction schedule and their insurance 

certificate along with project references and a plan of attack. 

 

All of the submitted material was reviewed by SGM. The methods, approach and schedule appear 

to be reasonable. SGM has direct experience with Mueller on a wide variety of projects, all of 

which were positive experiences. Also, Mueller provided five references which were contacted by 

SGM, three of which were responsive. The responsive references all spoke highly of Mueller and 

indicated they were competent, completed project on time and within budget with minimal change 

orders. 

 

SGM believes Mueller Construction Services is the lowest, qualified and responsive contractor that 

bid the Lariat Lift Station Project. SGM recommends the City of Craig enter into a contract with 

Mueller Construction Services, Inc. to complete the agreed upon scope of work for the Lariat Lift 

Station Project for a total project cost of $298,394.00. 
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If you have any questions, please call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
SGM 
 
 
 
 
Chris Lehrman, PE 
Project Manager 
 
Cc email:  City of Craig Staff  
  
Attachment:  Bid Tabulation 
  Proof of Insurance 

Construction Schedule 
References  
Reference Responses 

 
  

clehrman
Signature
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DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate  holder  is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the  terms  and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTACTPRODUCER NAME:
FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A :
INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDL SUBRINSR POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITSPOLICY NUMBERLTR (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)INSD WVD
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $

DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $JECT

$OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMITAUTOMOBILE LIABILITY $(Ea accident)
BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS AUTOS
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $HIRED AUTOS (Per accident)AUTOS

$

UMBRELLA LIAB EACH OCCURRENCE $OCCUR
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

$DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-WORKERS COMPENSATION
STATUTE ERAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $N / AOFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2014/01)

MUELCON-01 JHERL

4/4/2016

License # 0757776
HUB International Insurance Services (COL)
2742 Crossroads Blvd
Grand Junction, CO 81506

(970) 245-8011 (866) 908-6374

BITCO General Insurance Corporation 20095

Mueller Construction Services, Inc.
5032 CR 154
Glenwood Springs, CO 81601

Pinnacol Assurance Company 41190

A X 1,000,000
X CLP3622540 07/01/2015 07/01/2016 100,000

5,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

1,000,000
A X CAP3622541 07/01/2015 07/01/2016

X X

XX 2,000,000
A CUP2808851 07/01/2015 07/01/2016 2,000,000

10,000X
X

B 4073583 04/01/2016 04/01/2017 1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

This section intentionally left blank

For Information Only
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Relevant Project/Contract Name: East Mesa Water Company Ditch and Tunnel Stabilization 

 

 

Description of Services Provided: The contract issued was to replace damaged pipe and line an irrigation ditch that 

carries water to the downstream users of the ditch. The East Mesa Ditch supplies irrigation water from the Crystal River to 

various ranches further downstream. The ditch and supply tunnel were constructed over 100 years ago and were suffering 

from leaks, blowouts, and tunnel ceiling collapsing. URS Corporation, working in conjunction with the Natural Resources 

Conservation Service, developed a plan to remove the old pipe, install new 48” HDPE pipe (800 lineal feet), stabilize the 

tunnel, partially line the tunnel, and construct an intake structure. Mueller performed all excavation, pipe installation, 

backfill, and structures. The project occurred on a steep incline with very limited access. Mueller, working with URS 

Engineers for the tunnel design, developed a plan to install the pipe into the tunnel. 

 

Overall Construction Cost, Initial Contract Value, Change Orders and Reasons for Change Orders: Original Bid 

$337,048 Final Construction Cost $392,745 Total Change Orders: $55,697 – All change order items were 

owner requested, including additional pipe added to the project, the addition of the pipe to line the tunnel, and various 

force account items related to other portions of the ditch outside the original scope of work Completed: May 2015 

 

Owner:  East Mesa Water Company 

  977 County Road 101 

  Carbondale, CO 81623 

   Contact: Richard McIntyre – Member of the Board for the Water Company 

   (970) 948-9628 

   richard@flyingdogales.com 

 

Engineer:              URS Corporation (Now AECOM) 

   804 Colorado Avenue Suite 201 

Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 

Contact: John Sikora P.E. 

970-384-4735 

john.sikora@aecom.com 

Successfully Completed Projects 

 

Per Section II. 

mailto:john.sikora@aecom.com
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Relevant Project/Contract Name:   Blue River Wastewater Treatment Plant Modifications 

 

Description of Services Provided: The contract was issued to solve several state mandated requirements related to the 

reduction of nitrogen in the effluent. The contractor Mueller installed structural concrete for two cast in place structures, 

new walls in a clarifier basin, and several concrete structures inside the chlorine contact chamber to assist with installation 

of Ultra Violet Light Tubes. The contract also called for installation of various sizes of Ductile Iron Pipe from 30” 

diameter down to 6” diameter, with the majority of the pipe 16” in diameter. The contractor also installed new 6” and 12” 

process pumps, and removed an old clarifier and installed a new clarifier. All of the work was completed inside the 

existing plant while the plant was operational and without the use of a crane. Numerous pieces of pipe and equipment had 

weights in excess of several thousand pounds. Mueller developed a sequence of work and then worked closely with plant 

personnel to minimize plant disruptions. Highlights of the project consisted of moving and erecting heavy pieces of pipe 

and equipment without traditional hoisting while working inside the plant with limited space and access. 

 

Overall Construction Cost, Initial Contract Value, Change Orders: 

 

Original Bid: $1,047,177   

Final Construction Cost: $1,071,639  

Total Change Orders: $24,462 – there were several owner requested changes such as adding additional pipe and 

relocating pumps, there were several changed conditions where upon excavation there were unknown pipe lines and 

concrete encasements that required extra work. Completed: August 2015 

 

Owner: Silverthorne –Dillon Joint Authority                 

  26452 N. Highway 9                                                    

                          Silverthorne, CO 80498                                                

                          Contact: Jason Kruckeberg –                                        

                          Operations Superintendent                                            

  (970) 468-6152                                                             

                          jkruckeberg@silverthorne.org  

Engineer:        McLaughlin Water Engineers 

                         a Division of Merrick & Company 

                         2420 Alcott Street 

                         Denver, CO  80211 

                         Contact: Jim McLaughlin P.E. 

                         (303) 964-3333 

jmclaughlin@merrick.com 

 

mailto:jkruckeberg@silverthorne.org
mailto:jmclaughlin@merrick.com
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Relevant Project/Contract Name:  Stein Bridge and Stein Trail Improvements 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description of Services Provided: The contract issued was a proposal to resolve several issues related to the bridge and 

trail. The Stein Bridge is a 100 year old steel truss structure relocated over the Roaring Fork River in 1974 by the Stein 

Family. The bridge suffered from limited freeboard clearance during high water which impacts river rafting. In addition, 

the trail leading from the bridge to the Rio Grande Trail was very narrow and at very steep grades. The project consisted 

of raising the bridge three feet, adding new structure to hold the bridge at the new elevation, and making significant 

modifications to the trail. The project is inaccessible for cranes, therefore Mueller devised a method to raise the bridge 

without using cranes. Mueller installed structural steel and concrete, and extended the bridge approaches with heavy 

timber spans and decking. 

 

Overall Construction Cost, Initial Contract Value, Change Orders and Reasons for Change Orders: Original Bid 

$294,922 Final Construction Cost $303,017 Total Change Orders: $8,095 – Upon the demolition of the 

existing abutments, is was discovered that portion of the existing timber were severely rotted, which required a change 

order to purchase new timber members. In addition, there were restrictions placed on the travel of the Rio Grande Trail 

resulting in minor change order for pilot cars during travel of heavy equipment.  Completed: Spring 2016 

 

Owner:  Pitkin County  

   530 E. Main St. 2
nd

 Floor 

   Aspen, CO 81611 

   Contact: Lindsey Utter  

   (970) 920-5230 

   lindsey.utter@pitkincounty.com 

 

Engineer:             SGM, Inc. 

   118 West 6th, Suite 200 

Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 

Contact: Mike Fowler P.E. 

970-384-9075 (Direct) 

mikef@sgm-inc.com 

 

mailto:jmclaughlin@merrick.com
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Relevant Project/Contract Name: Stagecoach Dam Spillway Modification 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description of Services Provided:  

 

Stagecoach Dam—Moltz-Mueller Joint Venture 

Project consisted of removal of existing ogee spillway, forming and placing new ogee spillway raising the 

spillway crest 4 feet. Also included modifications to the outlet works trash rack and guides. The Stagecoach 

dam is a high elevation dam and work occurred while reservoir was filled. No debris was allowed to fall into 

reservoir or down stream. 

  

 

 

Overall Construction Cost: $384,884.00    Completed: November 2010 

 

 

 
Owner:                          Upper Yampa Water Conservation District         

Andy Rossi, Engineer                             

P.O. Box 880339       

Steamboat Springs, CO 80488-0339                                                  

970-871-1035    

 

Engineer:                     URS Engineers (now AECOM) 

   2950 Professional Pl #201,  

Colorado Springs, CO 80904 
Contact: 
(719) 386-8300 

javascript:void(0)
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Relevant Project/Contract Name: LEDE Dam Modifications 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description of Services Provided:  

 
The LEDE Dam project consisted of sub contract work for the earthmoving company, constructing a structural concrete 
intake structure, an outlet structure and encasement of main outlet pipe, as well as spillway cutoff walls. 
 

Overall Construction Cost: $227,000.00     Completed: November 2014 

 
Owner:                     

 

Town of Gypsum 

50 Lundgren Blvd  

Gypsum, CO 81637    

970-524-7688    
    

 

Engineers:                      

 

Zancanella and Associates, Inc. 

1011 Grand Ave. 

Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 

Contact: Tim Beck 

970-945-5700 
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Mueller Construction Reference Responses 

1. Ditch and Tunnel Stabilization Project – East Mesa Water Company 

a. Project Type? RESPONSE: The project was a very difficult irrigation ditch rehab.  

It involved installing 800’ of 48” HDPE pipe on a sheer and unstable cliff-side. It 

also included coordinating with a mining company to stabilize a 450’ tunnel. 

b. Project Size? RESPONSE: Total Project Cost was $767,000 

c. Overall Project Performance? RESPONSE: The project was done on budget and 

met its time deadline. 

d. Positive Aspects of Performance? RESPONSE: The project was an 

overwhelming success due in part to Mueller Construction’s ability to deal with 

the many unknowns of the project. 

e. Negative Aspects of Performance? RESPONSE: None. 

f. Would You Hire Mueller Construction Again? RESPONSE: I would highly 

recommend Mueller Construction for any future projects pertaining to, but not 

limited to, the East Mesa Water Company. 

2. Blue River WWTP Modifications – Silverthorne\Dillon Joint Authority 

a. Project Type? RESPONSE: Mueller was hired to demo and replace the running 

gear (collector arms) in a wastewater secondary treatment clarifier.  The original 

design was replaced with a West-Tech design.  Mueller also installed several 

pumps to create a BNR flow path in the plant. 

b. Project Size? RESPONSE: The clarifier is 50 x 50 feet, 179,000 gallon volume, 1 

MGD design flow. Two smaller submersibles and two larger vertical recycle 

pumps were installed. 

c. Overall Project Performance? RESPONSE: Mueller performed very well and 

adapted to the conditions of the job.  The clarifier is inside with no roof access, so 

material transportation was a challenge.  The project was done on a timely 

fashion, with minimal delays from third parties.  The pump installations went well. 

d. Positive Aspects of Performance? RESPONSE: Mueller worked well with JSA 

staff and caused no operational disruptions.  The finished project is functional, 

works well and looks good; impressive results.  

e. Negative Aspects of Performance? RESPONSE:  The challenges of bringing and 

assembling the gear inside were unexpected in planning, but Mueller rose to the 

occasion and performed very well, creating a positive result. 

f. Would You Hire Mueller Construction Again? RESPONSE: Yes! JSA would 

definitely look forward to working with Mueller again.  When one of the recycle 

pump motors developed electrical noise, Mueller came in to help remove the 

motor so the vendor could take it to a motor shop.  Mueller has an excellent 

customer service approach. 
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3. Stagecoach Dam Spillway Modifications – Upper Yampa Water Conservation 

District                                                                                                           

a. Project Type? RESPONSE: A partial demolition of a high hazard dam to 

reconstruct the spill way to a higher elevation. 

b. Project Size? RESPONSE: $385,000 

c. Overall Project Performance? RESPONSE: Overall project performance was 

great.   

d. Positive Aspects of Performance? RESPONSE: Mueller adapted to tricky re-

designs during construction, the demolition work was very detailed and had to be 

precise, they worked well through all unforeseen challenges and worked with a 

small crew who was very effective. 

e. Negative Aspects of Performance? RESPONSE: None. 

f. Would You Hire Mueller Construction Again? RESPONSE: Yes, I would hire 

Mueller for all my projects if I could. 

 


